### **5 AUGUST 2015**

### **NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL**

# **Cabinet**

Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held in the Council Chamber, Appletree Court, Lyndhurst on Wednesday, 5 August 2015

\* Cllr B Rickman (Chairman)
\* Cllr E J Heron (Vice-Chairman)

## Councillors: Councillors:

\*Present

In attendance:

Councillors: Councillors:

Mrs D E Andrews L E Harris W G Andrews M R Harris G C Beck Mrs A Hoare Mrs S M Bennison Mrs M D Holding Mrs A M Rostand Mrs F Carpenter Ms K V Crisell D N Tungate S P Davies R A Wappet Mrs C V Ward Ms L C Ford A T Glass C A Wise

### Also In Attendance

Ms Alison Barnes (New Forest National Park Authority) and Graham Waters (Tenant Cabinet Representative)

## Officers Attending:

D Yates, R Jackson, J Mascall, Miss J Debnam, Miss G O'Rourke and Mrs K Williams

## **Apologies**

None were received.

### 8 MINUTES

### **RESOLVED:**

That the minutes of the meetings held on 18 May and 3 June 2015 be signed by the Chairman as correct records.

### 9 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made by any member in connection with an agenda item.

### 10 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

No issues were raised during the public participation period.

# 11 DEVOLUTION PROPOSALS FOR WIDER HAMPSHIRE - DEVELOPING PROPOSALS FOR DEVOLVED POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Cabinet discussed the proposals that were being developed for the submission of a bid to the Government for additional powers to be devolved to Hampshire and the Isle of Wight. The letter which had been sent on behalf of the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Authorities, setting out their Statement of Intent, had been circulated separately as a supplement to the report. In bidding for additional powers the authorities had to demonstrate how, under the new arrangements, they would be more effective in achieving government priorities on issues such as additional house building and how they would improve the efficiency of the delivery of devolved services, such as transport and economic development. require the establishment of a Combined Authority to operate the additional powers, but which would not act as a new "super authority" that would take over all the functions and structures of the existing authorities in the area. indications were that there was scope for flexibility in the arrangements chosen. The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Association of Local Authorities already had strong working relationships, with various partnerships operating successfully, and it was important that these were preserved.

The Cabinet noted that it was intended that there should be a full debate on any proposals at the next meeting of the Council. It was emphasised that this was the early stages of a process, which would become clearer as the process progressed. Members concurred with the view that the potential of devolved powers should be thoroughly investigated and critically evaluated in order that the Council could take a well informed decision, for the future benefit of the residents of the District.

### **RESOLVED:**

- (a) That the action taken so far to develop proposals for a Combined Authority for the wider Hampshire be noted; and
- (b) That the proposals be subject to further debate at the meeting of the Council on 7 September 2015.

### 12 A PARTNERSHIP PLAN FOR THE NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

The Cabinet considered the Partnership Plan which had been prepared by the National Park Authority to update their 2010 Management Plan. Following extensive joint working with partner organisations and two consultation exercises the Plan was being well received. A number of statutory and non-statutory organisations had been involved in the Plan's production and would be taking the lead on specific actions, leading to a high level of ownership and commitment to the Plan's delivery.

Members were addressed by Ms Barnes, the Chief Executive of the National Park Authority, who thanked the Members and Officers of the Council for their hard work in developing the partnership approach that had been adopted and had proved to be productive.

Members welcomed the updated plan and the collaborative approach that had been adopted in its preparation.

### RECOMMENDED:

That the Council endorse the Partnership Plan for the New Forest National Park.

# 13 FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT - FORECAST OUTTURN BASED ON PERFORMANCE TO END OF JUNE 2015

The Cabinet considered the Council's financial performance to the end of June 2015. A number of additional expenditure items had been identified since the budget had been agreed, in particular from the rephasing of projects into the current financial year, increasing the General Fund requirement to £19.595 million. Details of all identified additional expenditure and other variations were set out in section 3 of the report.

Similarly, the rephasing of a number of capital projects had increased the capital programme budget from £18.516 million to £21.037 million. Full details were set out in section 4 of the report, with variations to the Housing Revenue account in section 5.

In general terms the Council was performing as expected, and there were no current concerns about potential implications, from the Council's performance, leading up to the setting of the budget for 2016/17.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the revised outturn forecasts for the General Fund (paragraph 3.2 of report item 7); Capital Fund (paragraph 5.1 of report item 7) and Housing Revenue Account (paragraph 5 of report item 7) be noted and that the additional expenditure items identified in Section 3 of the report be approved.

# 14 APPOINTMENT TO OUTSIDE BODIES

#### **RESOLVED:**

That Cllr J Heron be appointed to serve on the Partnership Board of Ringwood School and the Ringwood Health and Leisure Centre; and Cllr Penson on the Partnership Board of Priestlands School and the Lymington Health and Leisure Centre.

# 15 DELEGATION OF POWERS TO OFFICERS

# **RESOLVED:**

That the Scheme of Delegation of Powers to Officers be updated to include the officers shown in bold italics in each of the delegations attached as Appendix 1 to report item 8 considered by the Cabinet.

Chairman